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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Chairman and Members of the
Passaic Valley Water Comumission

1525 Main Avenue

Clifton, New Jersey 07011

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statement of net position of the Passaic Valley Water
Commission as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related statements of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, the audit requirements prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services,
Department of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey (the “Division”), and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.
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Anaudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Passaic Valley Water Commission as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplemeniary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, afthough not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of the financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprises the Passaic Valley Water Commission’s financial statements. The
Supplemental Schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the financial statements.

The supplemental schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or
to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental
schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a
whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 14,
2015 on our consideration of the Passaic Valley Water Commission’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Passaic Valley Water Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Very truly yours,

FERRAIOLI, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

April 14, 2015
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the Passaic Valley Water Commission, we affer the Commission’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the Commission’s financial performance during the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2014. Please read this analysis in conjunction with the Commission’s financial
statements, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights
e The Commission’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources by $80,916,400 (net position) for the fiscal year reported. This compares to

the previous year when assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources by $71,232,340, as restated.

e Total net position is comprised of the following:
(1) Net investment in capital assets of $47,287,383 includes property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation, and reduced for outstanding debt and unexpended funds related

to the purchase or construction of capital assets,

(2) Restricted net position of $25,684,830 are restricted by constraints imposed from outside
the Commission such as debt covenants, grantors, laws, or regulations,

(3) Unrestricted net position of $7,944,187 represent the portion available to maintain the
Commission’s continuing obligations to citizens and creditors.
e Total liabilities of the Commission increased by $4,001,717 to $147,309,368 during the fiscal
year.
Overview of the Financial Statements
This annual report includes this management discussion, the independent auditor’s report and the basic
financial statements of the Commission. The financial statements also include notes that explain in more

detail some of the information in the financia! statements.

Required Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Commission report information of the Commission using accounting
methods similar to those used by private sector companies. These statements offer short and long-term
financial information about its activities. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Commission’s
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, and provides
information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets), the consumption of net
assets that is applicable to a future period (deferred outflows of resources), the acquisition of net assets
that is applicable to a future reporting period (deferred inflows of resources) and the obligations to
Commission creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure of the
Commission and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the Commission.




PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position. This statement measures the results of the Commission’s operations over
the past year and can be used to determine whether the Commission has recovered all its costs through
user fees and other charges, operational stability and credit worthiness.

The final required financial statement is the Stafement of Cash Flows. This statement reports cash
receipts and cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing and financing
activities and provides answers fo such questions as what operational sources provided cash, what was the
cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Statementis

The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding
of the financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin immediately following the basic
financial stateiments.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain required
supplementary information. This supplementary information follows the notes to the financial
statements.

Financial Analysis of the Commission

One of the most important questions asked about the Commission’s finances is “Is the Commission as a
whole better able to fulfill its mission as a result of this years activities?” The Statement of Net Position
and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the
Commission’s activities in a way that will help answer this question. These two statements report net
position of the Commission and the changes in net position. The reader can think of the Commission’s
net position — the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources — as one way to measure financial health or financial position. Over time, increases
or decreases in the Commission’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating. However, one will need to consider the non-financial factors such as changes
in economic conditions, population growth, development, and new or changed government regulation.




Net Position

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As year-to-year financial information is accumulated on a consistent basis, changes in net assets may be

observed and used to discuss the changing financial position of the Commission as a whole.

The Commission’s net position at fiscal year-end was $80,916,400. This is a $9,684,060 increase over
last year’s net position of $71,232,340, as restated. A summary of the Commission’s statement of net
position is presented in the following table:

Current Assets
Capital Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Quiflow of
Resources

Long-term Debt
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of
Resources

Net Investment in Capital
Assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

FY 2014
67,753,970
162.902.486
230,6560.456
4,228.997
126,908,033

20,401,335
147.309.368

6,659,685

47,287,383
25,684,830
7.944.,187

80,916,400

Condensed Statement of Net Positicn

Restated
FY 2013

54,586,366
160,486.252
215.072.618

4,491.953

115,339,338
27.968,313
143.307.65]

ESLCTTASERLEIE Y

5.024.580

41,111,177
25,352,907
4.768.256

71.232 340

e i

Dollar
Change

13,167,604
2,416,234
15.583.838

(262,956)
11,568,695

(7.566.978)
4,001.717

1,635.105

6,176,206
331,923
3,175.931

9.684.060

Percent
Change

24.12%
1.51%
7.25%

(5.85)%
10.03%

(27.06)%
2.79%

32.54%

15.02%
1.31%
66.61%

13.60%



PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUEL)

Net Position (Continued)

A summary of the Commission’s prior year statement of net assets is presented with comparative
FY 2012 balances in the following table. This comparison has not been restated to reflect the

reclassification of the Commission's Other Post-employment Benefit Liability.

Current Assets
Capital Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Qutflow of
Resources

Long-term Debt
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of
Resources

Net Investment in Capital
Assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

EY 2013

54,586,366
160.486.252
215.072.618

e r——

4,491,953

111,596,163
27.968.313
139.564.476

R A bt

5,024,580

—_— e

41,111,177
25,352,907
8,511,431

74,975,515

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Restated
FY 2012

53,290,992
160,530,537
213.821.529

4.011.068
121,626,748

21.728.266
143,355,014

4.419.574

31,945,109
25,383,660
12.729.240

70,058,009

e A e,

Dollar Percent
Change Change
1,295,374 2.43%
(44,285) (0.03)%
1.251.089 0.59%
480,885 11.99%
(10,030,585) (8.25)%
6,240,047 28.72%
(3.790.538) (2.64)%
605,006 13.69%
9,166,068 28.69%
(30,733 (0.12)%
{4,217,809) (33.13)%
4,917,506 7.02%




PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMESSION

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Net Position {Continued)

While the Statement of Net Position shows the change in financial position of net assets, the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position provides answers as to the nature and source of these
changes. As can be seen in the following table, net position increased by $9,684,060 and $4,917,506

during the 2014 and 2013 fiscal years, respectively.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses

Operating Revenues
Non-operating Revenues
Total Revenues

Depreciation

Other Operating Expenses
Other Non-operating Expense
Total Expenses

Change in Net Position
Beginning Net Position

Prior Period Adjustment

Ending Net Position

And Changes in Net Position

EY 2014

82,447,178

2.418.136
84.865.314
10,481,183
54,229,431
10,470.640
75,181.254

9,684,060

71,232,340

80,916,400

Restated
FY 2013

79,848,492
467.945
80.316.437
9,488,977
54,700,838
11.209.116
75,398,931
4,917,506
70,058,009

(3.743.175)

71.232.340

Dollar
Change

2,598,680

1,950,191
4,548.877

992,206
(471,407)

(738,476}
217.677)

4,766,554
1,174,331
3,743,175

9.684.,060

Percent
Change

3.25%
416.76%
5.66%
10.46%
(0.86)%
(6.59)%
(0.29)%
96.93%
1.68%
(100.00)%

13.00%



PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Net Position (Continued)

A summary of the Commission’s prior year statement of revenues, expenses and change in net assets is
presented with comparative FY 2012 figures in the following table. This comparison has not been restated

to reflect the reclassification of the Commission's Other Post-employment Benefit Liability.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses

Operating Revenues
Non-operating Revenues
Total Revenues

Depreciation

Other Operating Expenses
Other Non-operating Expense
Total Expenses

Change in Net Position

Beginning Net Position

Ending Net Position

And Changes in Net Position

FY 2013
79,848,492
467.945
80.316.437
9,488,977
54,700,838
11,209,116
75.398.931
4,917,506
70,058,009

74,975,515

EY 2012

79,531,218
593287
80.124.505
9,008,349
58,051,971
7.771.182
74.831.502

A LA g

5,293,003
64,765.006

70,058,009

Dollar
Change

317,274
(125,342

191,932
480,628
(3,351,133)
3,437,934
567,429
(375,497)
5.293.003

4.917.506

Percent
Change

0.40%
(21.13)%
0.24%

5.34%
(5.77)%
44.24%

0.76%
(7.09)%

8.17%

7.02%




PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Budgetary Highlights

The State of New Jersey requires local authorities to prepare and adopt annual budgets in accordance with
the Local Authorities Fiscal Control Law and regulations adopted by the Local Finance Board pursuant to
this statute and codified as N.J.A.C. 5:31-1 et seq. The statutory budget was designed to demonstrate to
the Bureau of Commission Regulation of the Division of Local Government Services that the cash flows of
the Commission for the coming year will be sufficient to cover operating expenses, interest accruing on
bonded indebtedness and cash payments of maturing bond and loan principal.

The following tables provides a FY 2014 and FY 2013 budget comparison:

Budget vs. Actuzl

FY 2014
Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:
Operating 85,338,753 §2,941,135 (2,397,618)
Non-Operating 200.000 394.439 194,439
85,538,753 83.335.574 (2.203.179)
Expenses:
Operating 61,564,117 54,229,431 7,334,686
Non-Operating 17.235.506 16.629.450 606,056
78.799.623 70.858.881 7,940,742
Income before Depreciation 6.739.130 12,476,693 5,737.563

-10-



PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Budgetary Highlights (Continued)

Budget vs, Actual

FY 2013
Budget Actual Vartance
Revenues:
Operating 83,168,490 79,848,492 (3,315,998)
Non-Operating 668.600 467.945 (200.655)
83.837.090 80.316.437 (3.520.653)
Expenses:
Operating 61,412,697 54,700,838 6,711,859
Non-Operating 17,710,403 15,687,617 2.022.786
79,123,100 70,388,455 8.734.645
Income before Depreciation 4,713.990 9.927.982 5,213,992

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

During fiscal year 2014, the Commission had an increase of $12,897,417 in capital assets. The
Commission’s net property, plant and equipment at fiscal vear end was $162,902,486. This is a
$2,416,234 increase over last year’s net property, plant and equipment of $160,486,252, A summary of
the Commission’s capital assets is presented in the following table:

CAPITAL ASSETS
FY FY Dollar
2014 2013 Change
Capital Assets 251,838,760 238,941,343 12,897,417
Capital Improvements 75,312,423 75,312,423 0
Capital Leases 7,087,815 7,087,815 0
North Arlington Municipal
Water System 4,309,300 4,309,300 0
Acquisition Expenses 815,146 815,146 0
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (176.460.958) (165.979.775) (10,481.183)
162,902,486 160,486,252 2,416,234

-i1-



PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED}

Capital Assets (Continued)

The Comimission’s on going capital plan is reviewed each year by the Commission’s engineer. Notable

future capital improvements are listed below.

Recurring Construction, Vehicles & Equipment 6,836,000
Production and Pumping 4,820,000
Distribution 16,550,000
Plant and General Structures 2,209,000
Instromentation, Controls and Information Technologies 4.596.000
35.011.000

Debt Administration

At December 31, 2014, the Commission had outstanding New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure
Fund bonds and revenue refunding bonds in the amount of $131,352,330. The debt service schedule
goes out to 2039. Full details of the specific bond issues outstanding are found in Note 6 to the
financial statements and the supplementary schedules.

Economic Facters, Future Years’ Budgets and Rates

The Commissioners and management of the Commission consider many factors when preparing each
year’s budget and annual charges. Two of the main factors are growth in the Commission’s system
and new regulations issued by the State and Federal governments.

Contacting the Commission

This financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general overview of the
Commission’s finances and to demonstrate the Commission’s accountability for the fees it receives, If

you have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Passaic Valley
Water Commission, 1525 Main Avenue, Clifton, NJ 07011,

-12-
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION EXHIBIT A
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION Page 1 of 3
DECEMBER 31,
Restated
2014 2013
ASSETS
Current Assefs:
Unrestricted:
Cash and Cash equivalents $ 1,812,709 § 6,027,188
Investments 770,117 -
Accounts Receivable, net 17,775,626 17,856,648
Inventory 2,016,850 1,781,284
Other Receivables 9,437 5,455
Prepaid Expenses 206,670 496,664
Total Unrestricted Assets 22,591,409 26,167,239
Restricted:
Construction Account:
Cash and Cash equivalents 18,920,745 894,866
Due From NJEIT Trust - 1,594,629
Bond Service Fund:
Cash and Cash equivalents 2,187,017 2,086,173
Bond Reserve Account:
Cash and Cash equivalents 901,675 8,384,326
Investments 12,115,560 4,507,578
Rencwal and Extension Account:
Cash and Cash equivalents 3,000,000 3,000,000
Operations Account:
Cash and Cash equivalents 7,784,455 7,718,752
Unemployment Compensation Insurance:
Cash and Cash equivalents 113,809 99,203
Investments 139,300 133,600
Total Restricted Assets 45,162,561 28,419,127
Non-Current Assets:
Capital Assets:
Capital Assets 251,838,760 238,941,343
Capital Improvements 75,312,423 75,312,423
Capital Leases 7,087,815 7,087,815
North Arlington Municipal Water System 4,309,300 4,309,300
Acquisition Expenses 815,146 815,146
Less: Accumnulated Depreciation (176,460,958) (165,979,775)
Tota] Capital Assets 162,902,486 160,486,252
TOTAL ASSETS $ 230,656,456 % 215,072,618

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements" are an integral part of this report.

-13-



PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31,

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred OQutfiows:
Water Bank - Deferred Expense
Unamortized Costs in Excess of Refunded Debt,
Net of Amortization
Unamortized Bond Discount, Net of Amortization

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Payable from Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Pue To (From) Contractor
Meter Deposits Payable
Lodi Refund Payable
Security Deposits Payable

Total Payable from Unrestricted Assets

Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accrued Interest Payable

Bonds Payable - Current Portion
ILeases Payable - Current Portion

Total Payabled from Restricted Assets
Non-Current Liabilities:
Bonds Payable - Long-Term Portion
1 eases Payable - Long-Term Portion
Other Postemployment Benefit Liability

Total Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EXHIBIT A
Page 2 of 3
Restated
2014 1013
1,168,152 962,833
2,822,443 3,277,054
238.402 252,066
4,228,997 4,491,953
9,184,237 12,651,173
15,000 15,000
3,985 273,825
- 4,707,732
8,078 8,078
9,211,300 17,655,808
556,986 576,725
10,564,983 9,669,696
68,066 66,084
11,190,035 10,312,505
120,787,347 110,882,331
684,764 713,832
5,435,922 3,743,175
126,908,033 115,339,338
147,309,368 143,307,651

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements” are an integral part of this report.



PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION EXHIRIT A
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION Page 3 of 3
DECEMBER 31,
Restated
2014 2013

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQOURCES
Deferred Inflows:

Due To Water Bank 1,168,152 962,833
Unamortized Savings from Refinded Debt,

Net of Amortization 585,003 630,850
Unamortized Bond Premium, Net of Amortization 4,486,760 2,951,228
Deferred Savings on Bond Refunding,

Net of Amortization 419,710 479,669
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 6,659,685 5,024,580
NET POSITION:

Net Investment in Capital Assets 47,287,383 41,111,177
Restricted:
Current Debt Service 1,630,031 1,509,448
Future Debt Service 13,017,235 12,891,904
Renewal and Extension 3,000,000 3,000,000
Operations 7,784,455 7,718,752
Unemployment Compensation Insurance 253,109 232,803
Unrestricted:
Designated 608,084 608,084
Undesignated 7,336,103 4,160,172
TOTAL NET POSITION 80,916,400 71,232,340

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements™ are an integral part of this report.

-15-



PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Operating Revenue:
Service Agreements
Miscellaneous
Sale of Scrap

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:
Cost of Providing Services
Administrative and General
Depreciation Expense

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses):
Interest on Investments
Finance Charges
Interest Expense
Bond Issuance Costs
Cancellation of Old Receivables
Cancellation of Old Payables and Accruals
Other Postemployment Benefit Obligation
Lodi Refund
Amortization Expense

Nan-Operating Income (Loss)
Change In Net Position
Net Position - January 1

Prior-Period Adjustment:

DECEMBER 31,

Reclassification of Other Postemployment Benefit

Obligation (GASB No. 45)

Net Position - December 31

EXHIBITE

Restated
2014 2013
72,974,874 h 71,047,653
9,461,799 8,754,441
10,505 46,398
82,447,178 79,848,492
42,197,751 41,798,121
12,031,680 12,902,717
10,481,183 9,488,977
64,710,614 64,189,815
17,736,564 15,658,677
394,439 142,223
493,958 325,722
(6,893,669) (6,377,222)
(235,315) -
(1,594,629) -
1,529,740 -
(1,692,747)
- {4,707,732)
(54,280) (124,162)
(8,052,504) (10,741,171)
9,684,060 4,917,506
71,232,340 70,058,009
- (3,743,175)
80,916,400 $ 71232340

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements" are an integral part of this report.
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EXHIBITC

Page 1 of 2
PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2014 2013
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers 3 82,524,218 $ 78,942,788
Cash Paid to Vendors and Employees (57,911,779 (53,365,224)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 24,612,439 25,577,564
Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Tnterest Received 888,396 467,945
(Increase) Decrease in Investments (8,383,799) (4,641,178)
Net Cash Provided by (used in) Investing Activities (7,495,403) (4,173,233}
Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Principal Payment on Bonds and Notes (9,669,697) (9,645,395)
Interest Paid on Bonds and Notes {6,913,408) (6,457,893)
Proceeds from Issuance of Bonds 20,470,000
Bond Issuance Costs (235,315)
Capital Expenditures (11,367.,677) (9,444,733)
NIEIT Receipts 335,000
Lease Payments {27,086) (23,964)
Lodi Refund (4,707,732)
Bond Premium Received 1,843,781
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (10,607,134) (25,236,987)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,509,902 (3,832,656)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 28,210,508 32,043,164
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 34,720,410 $ 28,210,508
Amnalysis of Balance:
Unrestricted $ 1,812,709 $ 6,027,188
Restricted 32,907,701 22,183,320
$ 34,720,410 $ 28,210,508

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements"” are an integral part of this report.
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EXHIBIT C

Page 2 of 2
PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2014 2013
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 17,736,564 5 15,658,677
Adjustments tec Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense 10,481,183 9,488,977
Decrease (Increase) in Accounis Receivable 81,022 (1,000,351)
Decrease (Increase) in Other Receivable (3.982) 4,884
Decrease (Increase} in Inventory (235,566) 89,763
Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Expenses 289,994 83,852
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (3.,466,9306) 1,259,812
Increase (Decrease) in Meter Deposits Payable (269,840) (8,050)
Total Adjustments 6,875,875 9,918,887
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 24,612,439 3 25,577,564

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements" are an integral part of this report.
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NOTE 1.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

GENERAL

The Pagsaic Valley Water Commission (the “Commission™) was created and operates
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 195 of the Pamphlet Laws of 1923 of the State
of New Jersey, as amended (N.J.S.A. 40:62-108 to 40:62-150, inclusive), The
Commission was appointed by a Supreme Court Justice in 1927 pursuant to an
application filed by the cities of Paterson, Passaic and Clifton in accordance with
N.J.5.A. 40:62-109. Upon appointment, the Commission organized and commenced
negotiations for the purchase of the waterworks facilities of the Passaic Consolidated
Water Company together with all its rights and franchises. Anagreement could not be
reached for the purchase of the waterworks facilities. The Commission then instituted
proceedings for the condemnation of the facilities. A court appointed commissioner
examined and appraised the land, facilities and other property of the Passaic
Consolidated Water Company. Finally, in 1930, the Commission acquired on behalf
of the Owner Municipalities by condemnation and purchase, the pumping station,
treatment facilities, distribution system reservoirs and real property of the Passaic
Consolidated Water Company.

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 40:62-116, the waterworks facilities acquired by the
Commission are owned jointly by the Owner Cities. Ownership interests were
allocated among the Owner Cities by application of the formula established in N.J.S.A.
4(:62-121 for the appointment of liability, as among the Owner Cities, for the
indebtedness issued on behalf of the Commission. Under that formula, an Owner City
was liable for the payment of the principal and interest on such indebtedness in the
proportion that the assessed value of taxation of all real estate in such municipality for
the year 1929 bears to the total assessed value for taxation of all real estate in all the
municipalities in the year 1929. Thus, the City of Paterson was assigned a 537%
interest, the City of Passaic a 29% interest, and the City of Clifton a 14% interest.

Water Supply Sources

The Commission utilizes two principal water supply sources to meet the demands
placed upon its System. The Commission obtains water from the Passaic River system
in accordance with legal rights granted to the Commission by the State of New Jersey,
Department of Environmental Protection (“DEP”), under a permitting process
established by statute and implemented by the rules and the regulations of the DEP and
water from Wanaque North in the exercise of the rights of the Owner Cities under their
agreements with the NJDWSC and the Commission.
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NOTE 1.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUEID)

GENERAL, (continued)

Under the terms of Water Diversion Allocation Permit No. 5099 (the “Permit™) issued
to the Commission by the Division of Water Resources of the DEP, the Commission
may divert up to 2.325 million gallons of water per month (MGW from the Pompton
and Passaic Rivers at the Two Bridges Intake, or from the Passaic River at the Little
Falls Intake (at the Commission’s filtration plant in Totowa), or jointly from both
intakes, at the maximum rate of 75 million gallons per day (MGD). No minimum
passing flow requirements have been imposed on the Commission’s Little Falls Intake.
Such requirements have been placed on the diversion allocation permits granted to the
Hackensack Water Company (45090) and to NJDWSC (#5094) for their use of water
from the Two Bridges site for the Wanaque South Reservoir Project to assure a
minimum flow sufficient to preserve the Commission’s rights. The Two Bridges
Intake has been connected to the Commission’s Little Falls Filtration Plant in Totowa,
New Jersey, where river water is treated and purified.

In addition to the Permit, the Commission, as Agent for the Owner Cities under the
Wanaque Agency Agreements, has an entitlement of 37.75% of the Wanaque North
Reservoir operated by NJDWSC. These rights are equivalent to a supply of 35.48
MGD, based on the 1960's drought safe yield on 94 MGD for Wanaque North. Under
the Wanaque Agency Agreement, the Commission is responsible for the payment of
the Owner Cities’ aggregate share (37.75%) of the operating and debt service expenses
of NJIDWSC attributable to the Wanaque North System. The Commission is also
subject to a penalty provision in the event of a monthly overdraft from the Wanaque
North, which has occurred from time to time.

Water Purification and Treatment Facilities

The Little Falls Filtration Plant was constructed by the East Jersey Water Company and
first placed in service in 1903. At the time, the filtration plant was the first large-sized
gravity rapid sand filier system in the United States. The adjacent Pump Station was
completed in 1899 with a rated capacity of 75 MGD. The treatment plant and pumping
station are located on the Passaic River in Totowa.

The Commission has significantly modernized the Little Falls Filtration Plant and
Pumping Station. To enhance these facilities, the Commission has undertaken major
capital improvements, including programs implemented from 1962-1966, in 1975 and
from 1985-1987. Extensive facilities designed to process residuals generated from the
water treatment phase were added in 1975. At present, the Little Falls Filtration Plant
has a treatment capacity of 100 MGD and the Pumping Station a transmission capacity
of 160 MGD. The Little Falls Water Treatment Plant Upgrade project increased the
delivered water capacity of the plant to 100 MGD.
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NOTE 1.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

GENERAL, (continued)

Water from the Passaic River is taken in above Beattie’s Dam in Totowa, New Jersey
and is subjected to various physical and chemical processes. The Little Falls Water
Treatment Plant has finished undergoing an upgrade which will enhance plant
performance and expand plant capacity using advanced treatment processes that will
meet quality goals for microbials and disinfection byproducts. The existing
conventional clarification processes have been replaced by a ballasted flocculation
process that provides a high degree of treatment at higher loading rates for varying
water qualities. In addition to being more robust, the new process system has a very
compact facility layout which has resulted in the achievement of significant
construction cost savings. The second phase of the plant upgrade project, which
includes installation of ozonation for disinfection which, in conjunction with the
upgrade of the existing filters, will significantly improve the quality of water produced
while enhancing the ability to control the formation of disinfection byproducts to meet
future regulatory requirements. This state-of-the-art treatment plant upgrade was
completed by mid-2004.

The entire water treatment and purification process at the Little Falls Filtration Plant
is controlled and monitored so that the water delivered will comply with all applicable
safe water standards. In addition, the Commission adheres to a rigorous sampling and
testing protocol at its Little Falls laboratory facilities. The water produced at each stage
of the freatment and purification process is monitored continuously for various
characteristics to provide assurance of water quality. This surveillance program also
extends to regular sampling and testing of water in the Passaic River, the tributary
streams that flow into the river, the Commission’s reservoirs, the Wanaque North water
supplied by NJDWSC and the distribution system. As a result, the Commission has
only been required on two occasions since 1981 to notify its customers of minor
violations of water standards established by Federal or state law. The Commission
promptly corrected the conditions which give rise to such violation.

The water which the Commission receives from the Wanaque North system is treated
by the NJDWSC at its filtration works.
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NOTE 2.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

A. Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Passaic Valley Water Commission have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
applicable fo enterprise funds of state and local governmental units. Enterprise
funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is
that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing services to the
general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges, or where the governing body has decided that the periodic
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and or net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, accountability or other purposes.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board GASB is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The significant of the Commission’s accounting policies are described
below.

On January 1, 2012, the Commission adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred
Qutflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, which
amends the net asset reporting requirement of Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Govermments, and other pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows from
resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required
components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as net position,
rather than net assets. The classifications of net position are defined as follows:

*  Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of
capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of those assets. Ifthere are any significant unspent related debt
proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent
proceeds are not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets.
Rather that portion of the debt is included in the same net position component
as the unspent proceeds.
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

A. Basis of Presentation, (continued)

*  Restricted - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on
net position used through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as
through debt convents), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or constraints tmposed by law through constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation.

»  Unrestricted - This component of net position consists of net position that do
not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”

B. Basis of Accounting

The Passaic Valley Water Commission prepares its financial statements on the
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
they are earned and expenses are recognized when the liability is incurred.

C. Grants

Contributions received from the U.S.D.H.S., US.EP.A. and N.JD.EP. are
recorded in the period in which they are awarded.

Grants receivable, if any, represent the total grant awards less amounts collected
to date. Grants, if any, not internally restricted and utilized to finance operations
are identified as non-operating revenue. Grants externally restricted for non-

operating purposes are recorded as contributed capital and identified as grants-in-
aid.

D. Inventories of Materials and Supplies

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis) or market.
Inventories consist primarily of chemicals, pipes, fittings, meters, valves and
various other plumbing materials and supplies.
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

(CONTINUED)

NOTE 2.

E. Propertyv. Plant and Fguipment

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost which includes direct construction
costs and other expenditures related to construction. Land is stated at approximate
fair market value as of the date it was donated to the Commission.

System construction costs are charged to construction in progress until such time

as given segments of the system are completed and placed into operation.

Depreciation i1s determined on a siraight-line basis for all plant and equipment.
Depreciation is provided over the following estimated useful lives:

Building and Improvements
Water Mains and Interceptors
Machinery and Equipment
Furniture and Fixtures

Vehicles

20-50 Years

50 Years

10-20 Years

5 Years

5-10 Years

Depreciation on assets acquired with grants-in-aid and contributed capital assets is

recorded as a reduction of contributed capital.

Capital Assets

Capital Improvements

Capital Leases

North Arlington Municipal
Water Systern

Acquisition Expenses

Accumulated Depreciation
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

Balance Net Balance
Dec.31, 2013 Additions Disposals Dec.31, 2014
238,941,343 12,897,417 251,838,760

75,312,423 75,312,423
7,087,815 7,087,815
4,309,300 4,309,300

815,146 815,146
326,466,027 12,897,417 ¢ 339,363,444
(165.979.775) (10481.183) (176.460,958)
160,486,252 2416234 0

4.
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIIES, (continued)

F. Restricted Accounts

In accordance with the bond resolution as amended and supplemented, the
Commission has established the following cash and investment accounts for the
deposit, in the priority of the order shown as follows, of all revenue received by the
Commission:

Construction Account

Proceeds of all new money bond issues for capital improvement and expansion
programs for the enhancement and extension of the Commission’s water supply
system.

Bond Reserve Account

An amount equal to the greatest bond service requirement of any future fiscal year
for any bond not covered by bond service insurance.

Bond Renewal and Extension Account

An amount reasonably necessary, with respect to the facilities, for major repairs,
renewals and replacements or maintenance not recurring annually.

Operating Reserve Account

An amount to provide a reserve for Operating Fund requirements.

Bond Service Account

An amount equal to unpaid interest and principal during the following fiscal year.

In addition to the accounts required by the 1992 bond resolution, the Commission
has established the following additional operational investment accounts:

Contingency and Self-Insurance Reserve Fund

Amounts set aside to provide funds for contingencies concerning the self-insurance
requirements of the Commission.
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NOTE 2.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued}

F. Restricted Accounts, (continued)

Meter Deposits Reserve Fund

Amounts set aside representing meter deposits collected from customers.

In addition to the above, the Commission has also established the following
restricted accounts:

Unemployment Compensation Insurance Account

Employee and employer contributions are transferred to this account for payment
of unemployment compensation claims paid by the State Department of Labor and
billed to the Commisston.

. Unamoertized Debt Discount

Costs in excess of refunded debt incurred in connection with the 1987, 1992 and
2003 bond issues are being amortized over the lives of the issues calculated on a
straight-line basis.

Original issue discount and premium incurred in connection with the 1992, 2003,
2005 and 2014 bond issues and the original issue premium incurred with the 1998
and 2003 bond issues are being amortized over the lives of the issues calculated on
a straight-line basis.

. Operating Fand Budget

The budget amounts included in the statement of budget revenues and statement
of budget expenditures were approved in accordance with the requirements of the
“Local Finance Board” of the State of New Jersey, and were adopted by the
Commissioners after legal advertisement and public hearing.
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NOTE 2.

L

K.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2614 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Use of Estimates

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Commission uses
estimates in determining the allowance for uncollectible receivables due to/from
water bank and the useful life of depreciable assets. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Sick and Vacation Leave

Commission employees are granted carrying amounts of sick leave in accordance
with the Commission’s personnel policy and union agreements.

Net Positien

Net position represent the difference between assets and deferred outflows of
resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of reserves. Netinvestment in capital
assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by
the Commission or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or
laws or regulations of other governments.

Income Taxes
The Commission is exempt by law from federal and state income taxes and,

therefore, no provision or liability for income taxes has been included in these
financial statements.

. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Commission has adopted the guidelines of GASB Statement No. 42,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and for
Insurance Recoveries. GASB No. 42, long-lived assets, or asset groups and certain
identifiable intangible assets to be held and used are reviewed for impairment
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued}

M. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets, (continued)

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
such assets may not be recoverable. Determination of recoverability is based on
an estimate of undiscounted cash flows resulting from the use of the asset, or asset
groups and its eventual disposition. Measurement of an impairment loss for long-
lived assets, or asset groups, and certain identifiable intangible assets that
management expects to hold and use is based on the fair value of the asset. Long-
lived assets, or asset groups and certain identifiable intangible assets to be disposed
of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

N. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial
reporting by state and local government for pensions. It also improves information
provided by state and local governmental employees about financial support for
pensions that is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a
comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and
financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful
information, supporting assessments of accountability and inter-period equity, and
creating transparency. This Statement is effective for financial statements for
fiscals years beginning after June 15, 2014. The Commission is currently
reviewing what effect, if any, this Statement might have on future financial
statements.

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 71,
Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date.
This Statement requires a state or local government employer to recognize a net
pension liability measured as of a date no earlier than the end of its prior fiscal
year. This Statement is effective for financial statements with fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2014. The Commission is currently reviewing what
effect, if any, this Statement might have on future financial statements.

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 72,
Fair Value Measurement and Application. This Statement addresses accounting
and financial reporting issues related to fair value measurements. The definition
of fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUEID)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

N. Recent Accounting Pronouncements, (continued)

date. This Statement also provides guidance for determining a fair value
measurement for financial reporting purposes. This Statement also provides
guidance for applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to
all fair value measurements. The Commission is currently reviewing what effect,
if any, this Statement might have on future financial statements.

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 73,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not
Within the Scope of GASB Statement 68 and Amendments (o Certain Provisions of
GASB Statements 67 and 68. This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2015 — except those provisions that address employers and
governmental nonemployer contributing entities for pensions that are not within the
scope of Statement 68, which are effective for financial statements for fiscal years
beginning after June 15,2016. The Commission is currently reviewing what effect,
if any, this Statement might have on future financial statements.

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 74,
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans.
This Statement applies to OPEB plans and basically parallels GASB Statement 67
and replaces GASB Statement 43 and is effective for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2016. The Commission is currently reviewing what effect, if any, this
Statement might have on future financial statements.

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 75,
Accouniing and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions. This Statement applies to government employers who provided OPEB
plans to their employees and basically parallels GASB Statement 68 and replaces
GASB Statement 45. The Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2017. The Commission is currently reviewing what effect, if any, this
Statement might have on future financial statements.

. Reclassifications

After a review of the cash restriction requirements of the general bond resolution,
certain reclassifications have been made to restrictions of 2013 amounts to conform
with the 2014 financial presentation.
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NOTE 3.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all
highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of
purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued interest.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes that no governmental unit shall deposit public

funds in a public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

Public depositories include Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and
national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which are federally insured. All
public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five
percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits
of Governmental Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus
the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their
deposits to the Governmental Units.

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed
75% of the capital funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral
having a market value at least equal to 100% of the amount exceeding 75%.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, The
Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or
a banking institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and has capital
funds of not less than $25,000,000.00.

As of December 31, 2014, the Commission’s cash and cash equivalents are
summarized as follows:

Money Market/
Checking
Accounts Total
Unrestricted 1,812,709 1,812,709
Restricted 32.907.701 32.907.701
34.720.410 34,720,410

The carrying amount of the Commission’s cash and cash equivalents at December 31,
2014 was $34,720,410 and the bank balance was $32,217,583. This entire amount was
covered by federal depository insurance and the collateral pool maintained by the banks
as required by New Jersey Statutes.
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NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposit may not be returned to it. The Commission’s policy is based on New Jersey
statutes requiring cash be deposited only in New Jersey based on banking institutions
that participate in New Jersey Governmental Depository Protection Act (GUDPA) or
in a qualified investment established in New Jersey Statutes 40A:5-15.1(a) that are
treated as cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2014, $-0- of the Commission’s bank
balance of $32,217,583 was exposed to custodial risk.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are stated at fair value, which is determined using selected bases. The
Commission classifies municipal notes that have original maturity dates of more than
three months but less than twelve months from the date of purchase, as investments.

As of December 31, 2014, the Commission had $13,024,977 invested in various
municipal notes with maturity dates greater than 3 months but less than 12 months.

Interest Rate Risk

The Commission has a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as
a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates. However, New Jersey Statutes 40A:5-15.1(a} limits the length of time for most
investments to 397 days.

Credit Risk

New Jersey Statutes 40A:5-15.1(a) limits municipal investment maturities to those
specified in the Statutes. The type of allowance investments are Bonds of the United
States of America or the local unit or school districts of which the local unit is part of:
obligations of federal agencies not exceeding 397 days, government money market
mutual funds; the State of New Jersey Cash Management Plan; local government
investment pools; or repurchase of fully collateralized securities.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Commission places a $5,000,000 limit on the amount it may invest in any one
issuer.
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

NOTE S, NEW JERSEY ENVIRONMENTAL INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST

The Commission issued bonds in 2001, 2002, 2007 and 2010 through the Trust to
finance the improvement to the treatment facilities. The proceeds of the Bonds are held
by the Trust until the Commission expends funds on the project. The Commission then
submits for reimbursement of these expenditures from the Trust. The following is the
remaining amount of funds to be received by the Trust:

Balance Balance
Dec.31.2013 Cancelled Dec31. 2014
NJEIT - Fund & Trust 1.594.629 1.594.629 0

These funds shall be disbursed to the Commission under the terms of its loan
agreements with the New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust.

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT

The Commission has issued and has outstanding the following bonds as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013:

013 Issued Paid 2014
Series 2001 A&B NJ Environmental Infrastructure
Trust Bonds 30,303,056 3,532,687 26,770,369
Series 2002A&B NJ Environmental Infrastructure
Trust Bonds 2,410,059 476,173 1,933,886
Series 2003 Refunding Bonds 31,150,000 2,825,000 28,325,000
Series 2005 Refunding Bonds 8,035,000 615,000 7,420,000
Series 2007A&B NJ Environmental Infrastructure
Trust Bonds 2,777,617 183,113 2,594,504
Series 2007C Refunding Bonds 5,520,000 300,000 5,220,000
Series 2009A Revenue Bonds 4,515,000 310,000 4,205,000
Series 2009B Revenue Bonds 12,185,000 12,185,600
Series 2009C Revenue Bonds 19,105,000 690,000 18,415,000
Series 2010A&B NJ Environmental Infrastructure
Trust Bonds 3,396,295 167,724 3,228,571
Series 2010C Refunding Bonds 1,155,000 570,000 585,000
Series 2014 Revenue Bonds 20,470,000 20,470,000
Net Carrying Amount of Debt 120,552,027 20,470,000 9,669,697 131,352,330
Current Portion 9,669,696 10,564,983
Long-Term Portion 110.882.331 120,787.347
120,552,027 131.352.330
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

LONG-TERM DEBRT, (continued)

Presented below is a summary of debt service requirements to maturity.

Year
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2039

Principal
10,564,982
10,340,125
10,717,268
11,051,257
11,336,331
11,800,282
33,433,471
19,393,614

8,545,000

4,170,000
131,352,330

Interest
6,280,125
5,904,053
5,518,762
5,107,662
4,671,771
4,205,603

14,370,068
7,298,867
3,001,960

835,567

57,194,438

Total
16,845,107
16,244,178
16,236,030
16,158,919
16,008,102
16,005,885
47,803,539
26,692,481
11,546,960

5.005.567
188.546.768

In 2001, the Commission implemented major capital improvements at its Little Falls
Treatment Plant (“the Project™) to comply with the Safe Drinking Water Act
(“SDWA™). The Commission initially funded this project with two loans from the New
Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust (“NJEIT").

The firstloan (Series 2001 A) was for $7,445,600, of which $3,865,600 is a non-interest
bearing Fund Loan payable in semi-annual installments and due August 1, 2021. The
remaining portion of the 2001A loan was a $3,865,000 Trust Loan payable in semi-
annual installments and due August 1, 2021,

At December 31, 2014, the Trust and Fund portions payable were as follows:

Year
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

Series 2001 A (Project 8340322-02)

Trust Portion
Principal Interest
199,662 82,096
213,968 72,094
223,448 61,397
232,921 50,228
247,387 38,410
256,997 25,866
271,496 13.287
1.645.879 343,378

-33-

Fund Portion

Principal Total
196,388 478,146
199,383 485,445
198,551 483,396
197,387 480,536
199,217 485,014
197,220 480,083
198.669 483.452

1,386,815 3,376,072



NOTE 6.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued)

Series 2001 A&B NJ Envirgnmental Infrastructure Trust Bonds

The second loan (Series 2001B) was for $58,367,600, of which $30,302,600 is a non-
interest bearing Fund Loan payable in semi-annual installments and due August 1,
2021. The remaining portion of the 2001B loan was a $28,065,000 Trust Loan payable
in semi-annual installments and due August 1, 2021,

At December 31, 2014, the Trust and Fund portions payable were as follows:

Series 2001B (Project 1605002-005)

Trust Portion Fund Portion

Year Principal Interest Principal Total
2015 1,583,215 642,400 1,551,797 3,777,412
2016 1,659,352 563,275 1,549,634 3,772,261
2017 1,744,778 480,274 1,551,464 3,776,516
2018 1,830,130 393,030 1,550,300 3,773,460
2019 1,926,739 300,207 1,552,796 3,779,742
2020 2,022,684 202,488 1,551,964 3,777,136
2021 2.114.812 103.496 1.548.012 3,766,320

12.881.710 2.685,170 10,855,967 26,422 847

Series 2002A&B Environmental Infrastructure Trust Bonds

Due to unanticipated cost increases in the Project, the Commission requested and
received additional funding from the NJEIT in the form of two additional loans. These
loans were issued in December 2002 and are due August 21, 2021,

The first loan (Series 2002A) was for $8,227,632, of which $4,227,632 isanon-interest
bearing Fund Loan payable in semi-annual installments and due August 1, 2021. This
Fund Loan was adjusted $1,046,046 by the NJ Bureau of Administration and
Management for the remaining unspent portion of the Project (adjusted from the back-
end of the loan). The remaining portion of the 2002A loan was a $4,000,000 Trust
Loan payable in semi-annual installments and due August 1, 2021.
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued)

Series 2002A&B Environmental Infrastracture Trust Bonds, (continued)

At December 31, 2014, the Trust and Fund portions were as follows:

Series 2002A (Project 05-1)

Trust Portion Fund Portion

Year Principal Interest Principal Total
2015 105,234 45,810 217,677 368,721
2016 104,429 45,366 216,855 366,650
2017 103,048 45,150 215,704 363,902
2018 111,371 39,999 148,235 299,605
2019 114,875 33,075 147,950
2020 123,774 25,894 149,668
2021 132,112 18,198 150,310
2022 140,516 10,010 150.526

935,359 263,502 798.471 1.997.332

The second loan (Series 2002B) was for $1,054,281, of which $539,281 is a non-
interest bearing Fund Loan payable in semi-annual installments and due August 1,
2021, This Fund Loan was adjusted $138,493 by the NJ Burcau of Administration and
Management for the remaining unspent portion of the Project (adjusted from the back-
end of the loan). The remaining portion of the 2001B loan was a $515,000 Trust Loan
payable in semi-annual installments and due August 1, 2021.
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE. YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued)

Series 2002A&B Envirenmental Infrastructure Trust Bounds, (continued)

At December 31, 2014, the Trust and Fund portions were as follows:

Series 2002B (Project 02-1)

Trust Portion Fund Portion

Year Principal Interest Principal Total
2015 14,164 5,706 28,520 48,390
2016 12,788 5,644 27,540 45,972
2017 11,341 5,672 26,559 43,572
2018 15,329 5,091 675 21,095
2019 14,528 4,150 18,678
2020 13,810 3,239 17,049
2021 17,791 2,345 20,136
2022 17.012 1,248 18.260

116,763 33,095 83.294 233,152

Series 2003 Water Supply System Revenue Refunding Bonds

On February 15, 2004, the Commission issued Series 2003 Water Supply System
Revenue Refunding Bonds in the amount of $35,880,000 for: (i) the retirement and
refunding of 1993 Water Supply Revenue Refunding Bonds; (ii) the funding of the
Bond Reserve Requirement; and (iii) costs of issuance.
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued)

Series 2003 Water Supply System Revenue Refunding Bonds, (centinued)

AtDecember 31, 2014, the principal and interest outstanding on the Series 2003 Bonds
was as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2015 2,965,000 1,416,250 4,381,250
2016 3,115,000 1,268,000 4,383,000
2017 3,270,000 1,112,250 4,382,250
2018 3,435,000 048,750 4,383,750
2019 3,605,000 777,000 4,382,000
2020 3,785,000 596,750 4,381,750
2021 3,975,000 407,500 4,382,500
2022 4.175.000 208.750 4.383.750
28,325,000 6.735.250 35,060,250

series 2005 Water Supply System Revenue Refunding Bonds

On February 23, 2005, the Commission issued Series 2005 Water Supply System
Revenue Refunding Bonds in the amount of $10,605,000 for: (i) the retirement and
defeasance of the outstanding Series 1992 Bonds (other than the 1992 Capital
Appreciation Bonds) and the advanced refunding of the Series 1997A Bonds; (ii) the
funding of the Bond Reserve Requirement; and (iii) costs of issuance.

-37.



PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued)

Series 2005 Water Supply System Revenue Refunding Bonds, (continued)

AtDecember 31,2014, the principal and interest outstanding on the Series 2005 Bonds
was as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2015 640,000 294,935 934,935
2016 655,000 271,895 026,895
2017 685,000 248,315 933,315
2018 715,000 222,285 937,285
2019 740,000 194,400 934,400
2020 775,000 164,800 939,800
2021 800,000 133,800 933,800
2022 840,000 101,000 941,000
2023 370,000 66,350 436,350
2024 380,000 50,810 430,810
2025 400,000 34,850 434,850
2026 420,000 17.850 437.850
7.420.000 1,801,290 9,221,290

Series 2007A&B NJ Environmental Infrastracture Trust Bonds

On November 9, 2007, the Commission funded the improvements to New Jersey
Environmental Infrastructure Trust $3,615,780. These bonds were issued for the
purpose of: (i) the cleaning and lining water mains in Paterson; (ii) a water
transmission main in Lodi; (iii) the retirement of the outstanding Series 2001 A&B and
Series 2002A&DB Bonds (Trust portion only, adjusted for the remaining unspent portion
via savings credit); (iv) the funding of the Bond Reserve Requirement; and (v) costs
of issuance.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2613
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued)

Series 2007A&B NJ Environmental Infrastructure Trust Bonds, (continued)

At December 31, 2014, the outstanding principal and interest on the Series 2007A&B
NJEIT Bonds is as follows:

Series 2007A&B
Trust Portion Fund Portion

Year Principal Interest Principal Total
2015 55,000 44,038 125,602 224,640
2016 60,000 41,288 128,455 229,743
2017 60,000 38,288 124,651 222 939
2018 65,000 35,288 127,187 227,475
2019 65,000 32,038 123,065 220,103
2020 70,000 29,438 126,109 225,547
2021 75,000 26,638 128,899 230,537
2022 75,000 22,888 124,143 222,031
2023 80,000 19,138 125,729 224,867
2024 85,000 15,738 127,758 228.496
2025 85,000 11,913 122,907 219,820
2026 90,000 8,088 124,397 222,485
2027 95,000 4.038 125,602 224.640

960,000 328.819 1,634,504 2.923.323

Series 2007C Water Supply Svsiem Revenue Bords

On December 18, 2007, the Commission issued Series 2007C Water Supply System
Revenue Refunding Bonds in the amount of $7,070,000 for: (i) the refunding of the
outstanding Series 2006 Water Supply System Subordinated Project Notes; (ii) the
funding of the Bond Reserve Requirement; and (iii) costs of issuance.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
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LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued)

Series 2007C Water Supply System Revenue Bonds, (continued)

At December 31, 2014, the outstanding principal and interest on the Series 2007C
Water Supply System Revenue Bonds is as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2015 310,000 232,710 542,710
2016 325,000 220,310 545,310
2017 335,000 207,310 542,310
2018 350,000 193,910 543,910
2019 365,000 179,910 544,910
2020 380,000 165,310 545,310
2021 395,000 150,110 545,110
2022 410,000 134,310 544,310
2023 425,000 117,500 542,500
2024 445,000 96,250 541,250
2025 470,000 74,000 544,000
2026 495,000 50,500 545,500
2027 515.000 25.750 540.750
5,220,000 1.847 880 7.067.880

Series 2009A, B & C Water Supply Svstem Revenue Bonds

On December 15, 2009, the Commission issued Series 20094, B & C Water Supply
System Revenue Bonds in the amount of $38,500,000 to finance: (1) various capital
improvements to the Commission’s System, including paying the acquisition price of
an easement; (2) deposits to the Commission’s Bonds Reserve Fund, Operating Fund
Reserve Account and Renewal and Extension Fund to increase the amounts therein to
amounts equal to the Bond Reserve Requirement, the Operating Fund Reserve Account
Requirement, and the System Reserve Requirement, respectively; and (3) the payment
of the costs associated with the issuance of such Bonds.
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT, {(continued)

Series 2009A, B & ¢ Water Supply System Revenue Bonds, (contimued)

At December 31, 2014, the outstanding principal and interest on the Series 2009A, B
& C Water Supply System Revenue Bonds is as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2015 1,060,000 2,578,755 3,638,755
2016 1,125,000 2,514,943 3,639,943
2017 1,190,000 2,447,218 3,637,218
2018 1,260,000 2,375,543 3,635,543
2019 1,340,000 2,299,643 3,639,643
2020 1,420,000 2,218,930 3,638,930
2021 1,510,000 2,123,780 3,633,780
2022 1,620,000 2,011,980 3,631,980
2023 1,745,000 1,891,880 3,636,880
2024 1,875,000 1,762,380 3,637,380
2025 2,010,000 1,623,080 3,633,080
2026 2,155,000 1,464,709 3,619,709
2027 2,305,000 1,294,868 3,599,868
2028 2,470,000 1,113,134 3,583,134
2029 2,650,000 918,329 3,568,329
2030 720,000 709,274 1,429,274
2031 755,000 652,970 1,407,970
2032 795,000 593,929 1,388,929
2033 835,000 531,760 1,366,760
2034 875,000 466,463 1,341,463
2035 920,000 398,038 1,318,038
2036 965,000 326,094 1,291,094
2037 1,015,000 250,631 1,265,631
2038 1,070,000 171,258 1,241,258
2039 1,120.000 87.584 1,207,584
34,805,000 32,827,173 67.632.173
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LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued)

Series 2010A&B NJ Environmental Infrastructure Trust Bonds

On October 5, 2010 and November 23, 2010, the Commission funded the
improvements to New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust $5,390,000. These
bonds were issued to provide for, among other things (1) the financing of costs of
renovations, additions and improvements to the System; including specifically (i)
cleaning and lining over 22,000 linear feet of 6", 8" and 12" water mains in the City of
Passaic; (ii) approximately 5,100 linear feet of new 12" ductile iron water main to
improve the hydraulics of their distribution system; and (iii) replacement of
approximately 3,000 linear feet of 12" water main; (2) to provide security for loan(s)
from the New Jersey Environmental Infrastructure Trust; and (3) the payment of the
costs associated with the issuance of such bonds. Of this $5,390,000, $1,357,500 of
principal was forgiven by a grant through the American Recovery and Reinvestment
Act (“ARRA”) 0f2009. On April 12,2013, $335,000 of the trust loan was deobligated
and used to defease a portion of the Series 2010B Bonds.

At December 31, 2014, the outstanding principal and interest on the Series 201 0A&B
NIEIT Bonds is as follows:

Series 201 0A&B
Trust Porfion Fund Portion

Year Principal Interest Principal Total
2015 100,000 103,250 72,723 275,973
2016 105,000 98,250 72,723 275,973
2017 110,000 93,000 72,723 275,723
2018 120,000 87,500 72,723 280,223
2019 125,000 81,500 72,723 279,223
2020 130,000 75,250 72,723 277,973
2021 135,000 68,750 72,723 276,473
2022 145,000 62,000 72,723 279,723
2023 150,000 54,750 72,723 277,473
2024 160,000 47,250 72,723 279,973
2025 165,000 39,250 72,723 276,973
2026 175,000 31,000 72,723 278,723
2027 180,000 22,250 72,723 274,973
2028 190,000 13,250 72,723 275,973
2029 75,000 3,750 72,723 151,473
2030 - - 72,723 72,723

2,065,000 881.000 1,163,568 4,109,568
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LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued)

Series 2010C Water Supply System Revenue Bonds

On December 22, 2010, the Commission issued Series 2010C Water Supply System
Revenue Refunding Bonds in the amount of $2,790,000 for: (i) the refunding of the
outstanding Series 2000A Water Supply System Revenue Bonds; (ii) the funding of the
Bond Reserve Requirement; and (ii1) costs of issuance,

At December 31, 2014, the outstanding principal and interest on the Series 2010C
Water Supply System Revenue Bonds is as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2015 585.000 16,088 601,088
585.000 16,088 601.088

Series 2014 Water Supply System Revenue Bonds

On June 16, 2014, the Commission issued Series 2014 Water Supply System Revenue
Bonds in the amount of $20,470,000 to finance: (1) various capital improvements to
the Commission's water treatment and distributing system, including, among other
things, construction and replacement of water supply system components, including
cleaning and lining of water lines; main, valve and meter replacements; equipment
upgrades to the water plant; acquisition of vehicles and equipment; dam improvements;
Improvements to pump station systems and hydro-turbine generators; design and
project costs for water main replacements; upgrades to instrumentation and control
systems; and costs related thereto; and (2) the payment of the costs associates with the
issuance of such bonds.
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LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued)

Series 2014 Water Supply System Revenue Bonds, (continued)

At December 31, 2014, the outstanding principal and interest of the Series 2014 Bonds
is as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2015 755,000 818,088 1,573,088
2016 770,000 802,987 1,572,987
2017 795,000 779,888 1,574,888
2018 820,000 756,037 1,576,037
2019 845,000 731,438 1,576,438
2020 875,000 697,637 1,572,637
2021 910,000 662,638 1,572,638
2022 955,000 617,137 1,572,137
2023 995,000 578,938 1,573,938
2024 1,045,000 529,187 1,574,187
2025 1,095,000 476,938 1,571,938
2026 1,150,000 422,187 1,572,187
2027 1,210,000 364,688 1,574,688
2028 1,245,000 326,875 1,571,875
2029 1,290,000 286,413 1,576,413
2030 1,350,000 221,912 1,571,912
2031 1,400,000 176,350 1,576,350
2032 1,445,000 127,350 1,572,350
2033 1.520,000 55.100 1.575,100
20,470,000 9.431.788 29,901,788

CAPITALIZED LEASE PAYABLE - LODI WATER SYSTEM

In July of 1997, a 30 year lease agreement between the Commission and the Borough
of Lodi took effect. The lease agreement conveyed the real and personal property,
plants, structures, including reservoirs, pumping stations, water distribution systems,
sources of water supplies, connections, rights of flowage or diversion and all other
rights therein owned by Lodi in connection with its water distribution system
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the System) to the Commission. The lease also
requires the Commission to manage, operate and maintain the System in an efficient
and economical manner in accordance with its terms and otherwise in accordance with
prudent industry and utility practices.
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CAPITALIZED LEASE PAYABLE - LODI WATER SYSTEM., (continued)

The lease required payments to be made of $3,200,000 in 1997, $2,500,000 in 1998
and $750,000 in 1999, followed by a succession of annual payments beginning in the
year 2001 of $45,000 rising to approximately $97,000 in the year 2027.

The lease also requires the Commission to make capital expenditures and
improvements to the System in each year the lease is in effect beginning with
approximately $95,000 required in 1997 and approximately $103,000 required in 1998,
and increasing each year by various amounts to a level of approximately $250,000
required in the year 2026. As of December 31, 2008, the Commission has expended
in excess of the required capital improvements.

The lease contains options for the Borough of Lodi to terminate the lease after either
ten (10) years or after twenty (20) years by paying the Commission an amount
sufficient to pay or defease the outstanding principal amount and premium, if any, of
the 1997A Bonds then outstanding. The lease also requires the Borough of Lodi to
reimburse to Commission for all capital expenditures upon termination.

Total future minimum lease payments under lease obligations at December 31, 2014
was as follows:

Required Present Present Value
Lodi Lease Value of Lodi Lease

Year Payments Factor Payable

2015 68,066 95.24% 64,825

2016 70,108 90.70% 63,590

2017 72,211 86.38% 62,379

2018 74,378 82.27% 61,191

2019 76,609 78.35% 60,025

2020 78,907 74.62% 58,882

2021 81,274 71.07% 57,760

2022 83,712 67.68% 56,660

2023 86,224 64.46% 55,581

2024 88,811 61.39% 54,522

2025 91,475 58.47% 53,484

2026 94,219 55.687% 52,465

2027 97,046 53.03% 51,466

Lodi Lease Payable 752.830
Current Portion 63,066
Long-Term Portion 684,764
752.830
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

PENSION PLAN

Description of Plan - All required employees of the Commission are covered by the
Public Employees' Retirement System which has been established by state statute and
is administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division).
According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of the
System will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the System terminate,

Public Emplovees' Retirement System (PERS) - Established in January 1955, under
provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide coverage, including post-retirement health
care, to substantially all full time employees of the state or any county, municipality,
school district, or public agency provided the employee is not a member of another
State-administered retirement system. Membership is mandatory for such employees
and vesting occurs after 8 to 10 years of service for pension benefits and 25 years for
post-retirement health care coverage.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) - Established under the
provisions of Chapter 92, P.L.. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 to provide coverage
to elected and certain appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007. Membership is
mandatory for such individuals with vesting occurring after one (1) year of
membership.

Other Pension Funds

The State established and administers a Supplemental Annuity Collective Trust Fund
(SACT) which is available to active members of the State-administered retirement
systems to purchase annuities to supplement the guaranteed benefits provided by their
retirement system. The state or local government employers do not appropriate funds
to SACT.

The cost of living increase for PERS is funded directly by the respective system and
are constdered in the annual actuarial calculation of the required State contribution for
the system.

According to state law, all obligations of each retirement system will be assumed by
the State of New Jersey should any retirement system be terminated.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and
Benefits, issued publicly available financial reports that include the financial statements
and required supplementary information of each of the above systems. The financial
reports may be accessed via the New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits,
website at www.state.nj.us/treasurey/pensions.
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(CONTINUED}

PENSION PLAN, (continued)

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the retirement systems are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. Employer contributions are recognized when payable to the retirement
systems. Benefits or refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the terms of the retirement systems.

Investment Valuation

Investments are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national or international
exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates.
Mortgages are valued on the basis of future principal and interest payments, and are
discounted at prevailing interest rates for similar instraments. The fair value of real
estate investments is based on independent appraisals. Investments that do not have
an established market are reported at estimated fair values.

Funding Status and Funding Progress

The funded status and funding progress of the retirement system is based on actuarial
valuations which involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of events far info the future. These amounts are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new
estimates are made about the probability of future events.

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits
provided under the terms of the retirement systems in effect at the time of each
valuation and also consider the pattern of the sharing of costs between the employer
and members at that point in time. The projection of benefits for financing reporting
purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual
limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and members in the
future.
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

PENSION PLAN, (continued)
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

In the July 1, 2010 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the
actuarial cost method, and the five year average of market value was used as the asset
valuation method for the retirement systems. The actuarial assumptions included (1)
8.25 percent for investment rate or return for the retirement systems and (2) 5.45
percent for projected salary increased for the PERS.

Fmployer and Employee Pension Contributions

The contribution policy is set by laws of the State of New Jersey and contributions are
required by active members and participating employers. Plan member and employer
contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation with the amount of
contributions by the State of New Jersey contingent upon the Annual Appropriations
Act. Asdefined, the retirement systems require employee contributions based on 6.5%
for PERS and 5.50% for DCRP of the employee’s annual compensation. The amount
for PERS will increase to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased in over 7 years beginning
2012.

Annual Pension Costs (APC)

Per the requirements of GASB Statement No. 27 for the year ended June 30, 2012 for
PERS, which is a cost sharing multi-employer defined benefit pension plan, the annual
pension cost equals contributions made. PERS employer contributions are made
annually by the Authority to the pension system in accordance with Chapter 114, P.L.
1997. In the DCRP, which is a defined contribution plan, member contributions are
matched by a 3% employer contribution.

Three Year Trend Information for PERS
Annual Percentage Net

Year Pension of APC Pension
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
12/31/14 $1,323,650 100% $ 0
12/31/13 1,422,093 100% 0
12/31/12 1,330,388 100% 0
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NOTE 9.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION

On December 15, 2007, the Commission implemented the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This statement provides a more
complete, reliable and decision-useful financial statement in regards to the costs and
financial obligations that governments occur when they provide postemployment
benefits other than pensions (OPEB) as part of the compensation for services rendered
by employees.

The Commission currently vests employees for lifetime prescription drug coverage
after 20 years of service and lifetime health benefits after 25 years of service. The
Water Commission provides for no post-retirement death benefits. At the age at which
the employee may begin fo receive retirement benefits under the Water Commission’s
pension plan, the employee may retire and retain their health insurance coverage.
Depending on age and years of service at retirement, the Commission will either
contribute 100% for some individuals (and their spouses) or the retiree may have to pay
for some or all of the coverage.

Plan Deseription

The Passaic Valley Water Commission sponsors a single-employer post-retirement
medical plan that provides medical benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses.

Funding Policy

To be determined by Passaic Valley Water Commission. Valuation calculations have
been determined under the presumption that the Commission will eventually pre-fund
these obligations.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Oblication

The Water Commission’s annual other post-retirement benefit (OPEB) cost (expense)
1s calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement
45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities
(or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years. Under State guidelines, the
Commission is required to obtain an actuarial calculation every two years. The
following table shows the components of the Commission’s last annual OPEB cost (for
the 2014 fiscal year), the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the
Commission’s net OPEB Obligation.
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 9. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION, (continued)

Components of Net OPEB Obligation for 2014

Annual Required Contribution 1,713,971
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 280,738
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (301.962)
Annual OPEB Cost (Expense) 1,692,747
Contributions Made or Accrued (1.270.382)
Increased in Net Obligation 422,365
Net OPEB Obligation (BOY) 3,743,175
Net OPEB Obligation (EQY) 4,165,540

The Water Commission’s last annual OPEB cost, the last percentage of annual OPEB
cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPERB Obligation for 2014 was as follows:

Percentage of

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB OPEB Cost Net OPEB Discount
Ended Cost Contributed Obligation Rate
12/31/2014 1,692,747 75.05% 4,165,540 7.50%
12/31/2013 1,917,662 72.30% 3,743,175 7.50%
12/31/2012 1,917,662 72.30% 3,212,068 7.50%
12/31/2011 1,647,352 59.99% 2,680,961 7.50%
12/31/2010 1,647,352 59.99% 2,021,851 7.50%

[n 2014, the Commission designated $5,435,922 in net position to fund anticipated
OPEB obligations. This amount was an estimate by management based on their most
recent actuarial calculations of the Net OPEB Obligation.
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NOTE 9.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION, (continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2014, the most recent actuarial date, the plan was 25.64% funded.
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $26,635,729 and the actuarial value of
assets (designated in net position) was $5,435,922 resulting in an unfunded actuarial
accrued liability (UAAL) of $21,199.807. The covered payroll (annual payroll of
active employees covered by the plan) was approximately §11,266,000 and the ratio
of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 188.18%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and
the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multivear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Metheds and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and includes the type
of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing
the benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the January 1, 2014 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost
method wasused. The actuarial assumptions included a 7.5% investment rate of return
(net of administrative expenses), which is a blended rate of the expected long-term
investment returns on plan assets and on the employer’s own investments calculated
based on the funded level of the plan assets at the valuation date, and an annual
healthcare cost trend rate of 8% initially for 2014, reduced by decrements to an ultimate
rate of 5% after three years. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of
payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at January 1, 2014 was 30
years.
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NOTE 10.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

AMOUNTS REQUIRED BY BOND RESOLUTIONS

The following cash and investment accounts are required by the Commission’s bond
resolutions:

Current Debt Service

The Commission’s 1992 General Bond Resolution states that the Bond Service
Requirement equal the amount of unpaid interest or principal, plus, all interest and all
principal payable during a fiscal year. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the amounts
required by bond resolution were as follows:

201 201
Cash and Investments on Hand 2.187.017 2,086,173

Debt Service Reserve

The 1992 General Bond Resolution states that the Commission’s Bond Reserve
Requirement equal the lesser of (1) 10% of the aggregate principal amount of Bonds
upon original issuance or (ii) the amount equal to the Maximum Annual Debt Service.
In 2005 and 2007, the Commission purchased bond service insurance policies covering
the 1992, 2001 A&B, 2002A&B, 2003, 2005, 2007A&B and 2007C Bonds. As aresult,
the Commission has amended the applicable bond resolution to allow for the use of
insurance to meet it’s future debt service requirement. At December 31, 2014, the
amounts required by bond resolution were as follows:

Debt Maximum
Service Bond
Reserve Surety
Requirement Coverage
Series 2001 A&B NJEIT Bonds 2,677,037 4,384,887
Series 2002A&B NJEIT Bonds 193,389 631,874
Series 2003 Refunding Bonds 2,832,500 3,588,000
Series 2005 Refunding Bonds 742,000 941,000
Series 2007A&B NIEIT Bonds 230,537 250,750
Series 2007C Bonds 522,000 545,500
Series 2009A Bonds 420,500 -
Series 20098 Bonds 1,218,500 -
Series 2009C Bonds 1,841,500 -
Series 2010A&B NJEIT Bonds 296,973 -
Series 2010C Bonds 58,500
Series 2014 Bonds 1,576,438
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 10. AMOUNTS REQUIRED BY BOND RESOLUTIONS, (continued)

In addition to the insurance policies, the Commission has reserved $13,017,235 cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of funding future debt service requirements.

Renewal and Extension Reserve

The 1992 General Bond Resolution states that the Commission’s Renewal and
Extension Reserve equal the amount reasonably necessary as a reserve for expenses to
the System for major repairs, renewals, replacements, extensions, enlargements,
improvements or maintenance items of a type not recurring annually or at shorter
mtervals. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the amounts required by bond resolution
were as follows:

014 2013
Cash and Investments on Hand 4,360,766 4,349,679
Renewal and Extension Requirement 3.000.000 3,000,600
Excess (Deficit) 1,360,766 1,349.679

Operations Reserve

The 1992 General Bond Resolution states that the Commission’s Operating Fund
Reserve equal an amount necessary to provide one month payment for Operating
Expenses for the period beginning on such withdrawal date and ending on a date which
is one month subsequent thereto. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the amounts
required by bond resolution were as follows:

014 012
Cash and Investments on Hand 7.784.455 7.718.752

Coverage Covenant

The Commission’s 1992 General Bond Resolution also includes a covenant that,
among other things, requires the Commission to estimate, make, impose, charge, revise
and collect revenues for each fiscal year sufficient (i) to pay all operating expenses of
the Commission in each fiscal year, (ii) provide an amount equal to 110% of the
aggregate bond service requirement and sinking fund requirement for such fiscal year
and (iii) provide an amount so that the Operating Fund Reserve Account and the
Renewal and Extension Account are at their respective requirements.
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 10. AMOUNTS REQUIRED BY BOND RESOLUTIONS, (continued)

At December 31, 2014, the bond service coverage ratio was calculated as follows:

2014 2013
Net Operating Income (including interest and
Finance charges, excluding depreciation) 29,106,144 25,615,599
Bond Service Requirement 16,845,107 15,385,183
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.73 1.60

NOTE 11.

All principal and interest payments were made on a timely basis during the 2014 fiscal
year and through the date of this report.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As of December 31, 2014, the Commission’s general counsel has advised that there is
no pending litigation that would have a material effect on the Commission’s financial

statements, except as follows:

Beatties Dam Flood Claims

Notices of Multiple Claims have been received by the Passaic Valley Water
Commission which allege that the Passaic Valley Water Commission was palpably
unreasonable in the operation of its flood gates at Pompton Lakes Dam and/or improper
design, maintenance and construction of Beatties dam. The allegations involve claims
of property damage to numerous homeowners and business owners as a result of
significant flooding. The basis for the damages claims has not been substantiated. The
amounts of the total claims have yet to be determined. Matters are not yet in suite.

Berough of North Arlington

The Complaint in this matter, filed on December 31, 2010, seeks to rescind the
December 31, 2004 purchase by the Commission of the Borough’s former municipal
waste system. Alternatively, it seeks to reform the Purchase Agreement to increase the
purchase price on the ground of mutual mistake or the Borough’s unilateral mistake
with respect to the purchase price. In addition, the Complaint seeks damages in an
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NOTE 11.

NOTE 12.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, (continued)

unspecified amount based on the Commission’s allegedly excessive rates and on the
manner in which the Commission has maintained its system in the Borough, and it
seeks to recover from the Commission real property taxes on Commission property that
were never assessed by the Borough. The court granted partial summary judgment
dismissing the Borough’s claims for reformation and rescission, as well as its claims
for unpaid taxes and its claims relating to allegedly excessive rates and maintenance
of the water system. The Commission and the Borough have agreed to settle remaining
claims for damages based on unpaid permit fees, and the case was dismissed with
prejudice in December 2014.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Passaic Valley Water Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to
torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to
employees; and natural disasters. The Commission currently has Property, Liability,
Worker’s Compensation, Public Officials Liability and Public Employee Dishonesty
insurance purchased through various policies. There has been no significant reduction
in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have there been any settlements in
excess of insurance coverage. As of December 31, 2014, coverage was as follows:

Property

PVWC Deductible = $5,000
NJUA/MEL Coverage = $150,000,000

General/Auto Liability

PVWC Liability SIR = $250,000

NJUA JIF Coverage = $50,000 (excess of $250,000)

MEL JIF Coverage = $700,000 (excess of $300,000)

Munich Re Excess Liability = $10,000,000 (excess of $1,000,000)

Lexington Excess Liability (PVWC only) = $10,000,000 {excess of $11,000,000)
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NOTE 13.

NOTE 14.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Employees of the Passaic Valley Water Commission may participate in a deferred
compensation plan adopted under the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457
(Deferred Compensation Plans with Respect to Service for State and Local
Government). The deferred compensation plan is available to all employees of the
Commission. Under the plan, employees may elect to defer a portion of their salaries
and avoid paying taxes on the deferred portion until the withdrawal date. The deferred
compensation amount is not available for withdrawal by employees until termination,
retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. The deferred compensation plan is
administered by an unrelated financial institution. The employees’ contributions to the
Plan and all income attributable to those amounts have been transferred to the
exclusive benefit of the participating employees and their beneficiaries.

OTHER MATTERS

The Commission has a lease agreement with the North Jersey District Water Supply
Commission/United Water New Jersey Company for the use of an intake pumping
station located in Wayne. Rentis $1 per annum plus an apportioned share, based upon
square footage utilized by the Commission, of maintenance, utilities, real estate taxes
and fire insurance. The approximate annual cost is $30,000. The term of the lease is
the same term as the Diversion Grant from the State of New Jersey to the North Jersey
District Water Supply Commission/United Water New Jersey Company. In the event
that the grant is renewed or extended, the term of the lease shall also be renewed or
extended for a like period of time.

The Commission has been named as a defendant or third-party defendant in various
claims for damages, and claims by several administrative employees regarding
employment, health hazards and pay discrimination. The Commission has also been
named as a defendant in a wrongful termination claim relating to the termination of
services from a contractor. Management is vigorously defending against these claims
and believes the contingency and self-insurance reserve funds should be sufficient to
cover any unfavorable decisions.
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NOTE 15.

NOTE 16.

NOTE 17.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

DESIGNATION OF UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

The Commission maintains funds that, although may be spent for any lawful purpose
by the Authority, have been designated by the Board as follows:

201 2013
Designated for Self-Insurance 608.084 608,084
Total Designated - Unrestricted 608.084 608.084

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In 2015, the New Jersey Local Finance Board approved an application from the
Commission to issue $12,500,000 Water Supply Revenue Refunding Bonds.

The Commission has evaluated subsequent events through April 14, 20135, the date
which the financial statements were available to be issued and no additional items,

except as noted above, were noted for disclosure.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pension

On December 15, 2007, the Commission adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45, "Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions". Statement No. 45 established the
standards and financial reporting requirements for Other Post Retirement Benefits
("OPEB") expenses and related OPEB liabilities, note disclosures and requirement
supplementary information. On November 16, 2009, the State of New Jersey,
Department of Community Affairs, Division of Local Government Services (the
"Division”) issued Local Finance Note ("LFN") No. 2009-25 that required Local
Authorities and Fire Districts to recognize the accumulated, current OPEB obligation
as a designation of unrestricted net position on the Statement of Net Position, not as a
non-current liability. The Commission complied with this Division LFN and
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NOTE 17.

PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(CONTINUED)

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS, (continued)

reclassified it's 2008 OPEB hability as a designation of net position in the 2009 fiscal
year. In2014, the Commission revisited both the GASB standards for reporting OPEB
liabilities and requirements of Local Finance Notice 2009-25 and concluded that the

classification detailed in GASB No. 45 would be the most appropriate presentation for
an entity defined under NJSA 40:A-62-109.

Balance
12/31/2013 Balance
as Previously Retroactive 12/31/2013
Reported Adjustments as Restated
Liabilities:
Other Post-employment Benefits 3,743,175 3,743,175
Net Position:
Unrestricted: Designated for Other
Post-employment Benefits 3,743,175 (3,743,175)
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Schedule 2

Page 1 of 2
PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS, CASH DISBURSEMENTS AND
CHANGES IN CASH AND INVESTMENTS
UNRESTRICTED AND RESTRICTEDR ACCGUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
Renewal and
Construction Bond Service Bond Reserve Extension
Accounts Accounts Account Account
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments -
January 1, 2014 894,866 2,086,173 12,891,904 4,349,679
Cash Receipts:
Tnfergst on Investments 1,094 391 2,488 11,087
Service Agresments
Miscellaneous
Proceeds from Bonds 22,313,781
Finance Charges
Transfers 16,683,658 124,843
Total Cash Receipts 22,314,875 16,684,049 127,331 11,087
Cash and Tnvestments Available 23,209,741 18,770,222 13,019,235 4,360,766
Cash Disbursements:
Bond Principal Payments 9,669,697
Interest Payments 6,913,408
Operations
Capital and Other Expenses 4,288,996
Transfers
Total Cash Dishursements 4,288,996 16,583,105 -
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments -
December 31, 2014 18,920,745 2,187,117 13,019,235 4,360,766
Amnalysis of Balance:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 18,920,745 2,187,017 901,675 4,360,766
Investments 12,115,560
18,920,745 2,187,017 13,017,235 4,360,766
Unrestricted - 100,844 - 1,360,766
Restricied 18,920,745 2,086,173 13,017,235 3,000,000
18,920,745 2,187,017 13,017,235 4,360,766
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Cash, Cash Equivalents and [nvestroents -
January 1, 2014

Cash Receipts:
Interest on Invesiments
Service Agreements
Miscellaneous
Proceeds frem Bonds
Finance Charges
Transfers

Total Cash Receipts

Cash and Investments Available

Cash Disbursements:
Bond Principal Payments
Interest Payments
Operations
Capital and Other Expenses
Transfers

Totak Cash Disbursements

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Envestments -
December 31, 2014

Analysis of Balance:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Unrestricted
Restricted

Schedule 2

Page 2 of 2
PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS, CASH DISBURSEMENTS AND
CHANGES IN CASH AND INVESTMENTS
UNRESTRECTED AND RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
Operation Unempioyment General
Reserve Insurance Operating
Account Account Accounts Total
7,718,752 232,803 4,677,509 32,851,686
1,544 47 871,745 888,396
82,503,853 82,503,853
20,365 - 20,365
22,313,781
64,159 231,964 232,070 17,336,694
65,703 252,376 83,607,668 123,063,08%
7,784 455 485,179 88,285,177 155,514,775
6,669,697
6,913,408
57,911,779 57,911,779
12,048 814 16,337 810
232,670 17,104,624 17,336,694
- 232,070 87,065,217 108,169,388
7,784,455 253,109 1,219,960 47,745 387
7,784,455 113,809 451,943 34,720,410
- 139,300 70,117 13,024,977
7,784,455 253,109 1,222,060 47,745,387
- - 1,222,060 2,683,670
7,784,455 253,109 - 45,061,717
7,784, 455 253,109 1,222,060 47,745,387

61-



LEPDIE08 (6L1°€02°D) FLS SEE €S £6L'BECTCR £6L°8€5%¢8
[aAadl 6EF 6L 6EVPEE 000°00Z 000°00T
FE9'8TLE (981°0¢¢E) T PSOPSH'y PSOPCe’y
: SOT'TLO'S (£89°108) GE8'ESRY 815°65T°S 81676516
. TTLSTE 856°SHT 856°ceb 000°8¥T 000°8¥T
9TF5LEST LIT'8LOT SIT°00%°LE 866°12€°9T 866°12£°9T
LTTTLISY (yz8'e80't) GSL LG SP £85°850°8¢Y ERCRSO'8T
jenjpy (pge) pozIjeaY PIpUIUrY P3pnyg
AB3 K IO / 8833X 5B uowﬁzm ﬁuwgcﬁdw
PI0T XA FI0Z Ad
FI0Y ‘1€ HEAWEDEE TIANE IvIA FHI 904
LEDANE OL AREVJAWOD ANNIATE DSNLLVEALO Ad
TEANNA SISO ANV ENNTATH ONILVIEIJIO J0 TINATHDS
NOISSTAINGCD HELYA AT TIVA DIVSSYd
g jo [ e8eyg

£ ATINAdAHDS

sanwasdyy Bunesadg e10]

sjuonnsaAu] Jurrerado-uoN

suredoy pue seolales 18I0

9IATAS AUTY 81T

senEUR  / SOUL

(:{Ing) sIUISaIS Y MDIAIRS

5951ey)) 90IATRS
SINTIAIY

-62-



959°09T 9 6£6°€38°C 11£°775%0 0S7°90%°6 0sTo0t's
T6LPPE £86°59 L9L°6 0SL°GL 05L°GL
L9TTIPT XA LOO9STT 007551 00T SSH'l
£0¥°6T TIE 0T 889°¢y 000°rS 000°FS
891705 19701 GEETLE 009°SLY 009°6LY
8¥FETLY SLLYYS STTOLI 000 12L 000 1ZL
105°1¢€3 (987°099) 980°L6E T 008°95L 008°9¢L
PI°60L (97T9¢) 976°EFL 00L LOL 00L°L0L
120°L8 ET1°LT £88°66 a00°LZ1 000°LTI
2LY°079 977’8 VLT LT 005°5£9 005°5£9
0709 160°¢ 65T'°¢ 0SE9 0sg'o
6E1°C1T 15ez1 61<'ca1 006°L0T 006°L0T
0LLF6T 069°8L OTT°0¢EE 008°301 008°30%
0L0'9T8 0LO°LST 0E6°L19 000°SLS 000°6L8
F61°69¢ 188°6¢ 6TT°STL 000°59L 000°S9L
THFIEE 999°0L PECRIE 000°C8E 000°$8€
L0162 PRSUET 956°91 005°0¢ 005°0¢
068°109 CL6']Y $8O°0ES 009°645 009°6LS
ey () padaey)y pepuIwy 198png
. .mﬁm? hom._nm \ SSIIKY A0 mw,.aaﬂ 14 kum_,u:m ﬁmwmc_ud.w
: yI67 Ad P107 Ad
PIOZ 1€ HAAWADAC AIANT HVIA HHL H0OA
I1ADENT OL GTEYIINOD ANNTATY ONLLVIHJIO XD
TAGNE SLS0D ANV INNTATH SNILVHAJO A0 ATAGRHDS
NOISSTIWINOD HAIVM ATTIVA JIVSSYd
G jo g edeg

€ I"INAAHOIS

§52001d
sasuadxy 12410
soFe M pue soLIe[eS
uonesyLIng
sesuadxg oY1)
sofep pUE seLe[eg
[oUUOSIa
Adojouyoe [, UOTEULIOIU]
sasuodxy 10010
sedep PUB sILIB[ES
20[AJG TOUIOJST))
sasuadxy 1870
sode . pue saLIB[RY
Fununoosoy
sasuadxq 1210
sefep puE soLeley
Fuseyong
sasuadxy 1210
sedem pue soLIe[ES
SuneomBusy
sasuadxy Y10
safe ;| pue sore[eq
[ege7
sosuadxg OO
sefeA pUE SoLIR[Eg
oANNDOXT

153014135 FUIPIACI JO 180])

Bunerad

:sasuadxy

-63-



-64-

1Z186L°1F 666°CCL L 1SL°LeL T 0SL 0T 6F 0SL°0TY 6% $331A198 BUIPIAOA JO IS0} [BI0}-(NG
LE6°€99°6 9£0°THE F96°L59°6 00000001 000°000°01 osuadxg 398png DSMAIN
$9T'S (s66CT) S66°LE 000°5T 00052 SJISUINLIST] §BY) P9
FEFLOL (906°6€) 906°1TIL 00028 000°78 SPIAUMNSU] jRAY SUUO
- SIUSTHLISUT SBH) 2Uuljud)
£0L'SS LY8'8T £ST1°09 000°68 000°68 ABojorqorory
vZET8 £¥5°L6 LSYL6 000°S61 000°S61 sisA[euy 2ow1]
795°01¢T (¢s1°08) SS1°8LT 000°8+C 000°8%Z AXS[ISY)) [eJUdD)
LEOIL £71°8L LL8799 000°SHT 000°SH1 sasuadxy 19730
CEL'CRY'T 019°¢0¢ 061V 96T 1 001°000°T 001°009°) saBey pue sore[eg
:K1oteIoqeT
OFT88E (£68°66) £68°5st 000°05¢ 000°95€ aderen
F8E°ZSh 885911 ZI6°086 005°L60°1 00$°L60°T anueURYUIBIN
FTT6L1 SHI°LY $58°€o1 000°1ST 000°15T sastadxy B0
LS6°SPSE L8T169 CIV6IY'S OOLOTT'Y 0L 011y saSep pue saLefes
Eoﬁﬂﬁmbmﬂg
TES 61 (685°6L.7) $8¢°99¢ (00°L8T 000°L8T (soxmyrpuadxy Tesrde))-UON) UONONLISHOD
95k 00L 1 (66T41) 667°686°1 000°5L6°1 000°6L6°T sasuadxs 1210
968°860°¢ 09Z°8C8 OrS098°C 008°389°C 008°889°¢ 5988\ PUR SOLIB[ES
#ﬂ.m._nﬂ
SR IPFS 9¢e LOE T FOTTO'S 005°66%°9 0056679 sosuadxy IO
Z90°6L0°T 61LLYT 18¢°0L6 00Z2811°1 00T°8I1°1 595EM pue sane[es
Fodung
:(panuniugy) s3MATsS SUIPIACL JO 150))
Suneredp
[BnY O1ys@ pasaey)y papudumy 108png
hﬂ®> .Eu_._& \ mmuuuﬁm A8 wu_-wmm £y wuwﬂzm— _umuo_cﬂ_dw
F107 Ad ¥I07 Ad
#1007 ‘1€ HEAWEDEJ EANT MVHEX THL 904
LASANE OL HYVINOD INNTATY ONLLVHAEJO A4
AAANNA STSOD ANV ANNTATE SNLLVHAJO A0 I INATHDS
NOISSINANOD HHLVA AETIVA DIVSSYd
G Jjo ¢ adeg

€ ENTEHDS




LR V0L YS 989 FEEL 1EF'6TT¥S LITH9519 LSETFSTO
L1LT06TI L8YTIL 089°1£0°C1 LOETEFI T LOY0TTTT
+Z1°82 (6£v'z0) 6EF 781 000091 000°091
000°6€ 0sT's 0SL6E 000°Sh 000°st
L696E (PrSST) FFSCTI 000°011 000011
$56°6ET (968°8) 968°85 1 000°05 T 000°051
1PE P01 9r6°6Y [95°GE L0568 L0568
865°1F0°1 9£8°8T P95 6E0°T 0OF°890°1 004 8901
£60°TTH'1 0S8°ELS 0SO°ETE’T DO LESL (05 L6381
066°C (£E9°T) EEDL 000°S 000°S
$E0°T$9°G {6v£ 15T°1) 6rEISL9 000°008°S 000 005°S
969°119 9ET 061 FOL E0E 000°00% 000°00%
LES5C] EPPPE LSSST 000°08 000°0%
$$L°00L (46169} FSL°00L 096°0€9 000 80L
0Z78°806 61T°L6€ 182°7Z¢ 000°0ZL 000°0TL
POE°6E (000°61) 000°65 000" 0% 000°0y
L1EYT {691°T) 69T1°8T 00092 00097
zeT'99 (£97°L) £97°9L 000°69 000°69
980°L8Y (181} 18+°05+ 000°0S Y 00005y
15162 796081 LEOP0T 000162 000°16T
FI9°16T €158t L8Y°90€ 000°SkE 000°S¥E
[enpy (yag) PIBIBYD papuaIUyY 13png
B3 L JOLLJ / ssa3xg 10 pigg sg 198pngg pardopy
P107 Ad FY0Z Ad
PIOZ ‘1€ HHEWADEQ AANT VIA BHI YOI
LIDANE OL ATAVAINOD ANNAATY ONILVHAJ0 A4
AAANNA SLS0D ANV ANNIATH ONILYHIJIO A0 T1NATHOS
NOISSTIWINOD HALYAM ATTIVA 31VSSvd
G 10 ¥ adeg

£ ATNAAHDS

gunedg (vjo)-qng

JAPEAISIUIWDPY [€10)-GNS

BYO
Funipny
IS30TATRS [BUOISSIJOL]
PO
ETe]
Aqesyqg pue juewAojdwisun
QIROIPA / AIINOOG [BIO0S
uoIsuag
soueinsuy o711 dnoin
uondrmso ; uonezifendsoy
nonesuadwo)y 518310 M
sijeuay eakordurg
asuadxq 193 ped
SOXEB] PUE S99
souensuy AN[IqerT [elousr)
swoneIyY digstaquiaiy
SISWASILIDAPY [rSo]
asuadxg oseaT - "og snbeuepm
suoydara L
SNOSUB[[IISHA
sotjddng pue a3ejsod ‘Areuonmig
:$3suAdXF SAL RI)STWPY

-65-



-66-

90S°L16 Y 090°Y89°6 HOISOJ J3N w1 38uBy)
(944°010°C) (££9°T6L°T) suaunsn(py [e10
LvLT6oT) uonednqQ Jyauag awloidwalso oY1)
S6£°01¢°6 L69°699°6 {edisug puog
- $80°99 saseor] enden
- 0L 6T5T S|ENINIY PUR $9]qBARJ PO JO UOLR[[OUR)
- (629°765°1) $3[qRAL8D3Y PI() JO UOLR][RIUE)
- (§1£5€D) 81500 99IeNSS] puoyg
(TEL'LOL'Y) - pungay 1poy
(Zo1'vzI) (08T'FS) asuadxy] uonezZnIoUry
(LL6°88Y°6) (€81°18¥°01) asuadxs uoneroaxdagy
1dV VD 0) siseqf A1e198pNy JO UONRIIIHOIY
786°LT6%6 £69°9LFT1 :895UAd XY I9A() SINUIAFY JO SSIIX
LEFOTE 08 6LT'E0TT PLSCEL'E] £6L°8EC°C8 £SL8E6°58
T86°LT6'6 €9¢°LEL'S £69°9L¥°T1 0CI°6EL'D 060°299°0 (myaq) / sse3xy ppv
SEP88coL TrLOYe L 188°858°0L ET966L'8L £99°0,8°8L sonudAdY dunevaadg £q popuny s3so)) (€10,
L19°L89°CT 950909 0SH 62991 905 GET LI 90S°GETLT 1800 3O [B103-qug
S6L°0TES 666618 L69°699°6 969615 01 969°615°01 [edroutig puog
65199 - ¥80°99 78099 ¥80°99 sasea’] [endes
TTTLLE'D (ev6'evD) 699°€68°9 9TL'619°9 9TL6¥9°9 osuadxf 152Uy
”mow?ﬁmm uber
_ sonuasey Sunziadg Aq papung $3507 810
ey (uoyaq) podaey)y papumawy 1adpng
ABI A A0LLG / 889Xy 40 preg e ﬁmwmz_m ﬁBQD@Q
PI0T Ad v107 Ad
7102 ‘1€ SHOAADHA CEANH ¥VIA AL 904
LEADENd OL ARaVJNGD AANIATE DNLILVHIJO X9
TIANNA SISOD ANV INNHATYE DNIIVEAJO 40 T 1RAHHDS
NOISSTIWINOD YHLVM ATTTVA DIVSSVd
g J0 5 adeg

£ WINAAHOS




SCHEDULE 4
PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL BUDGET PROGRAM
FUNDED BY FINANCING SOURCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

FY 2014 FY 2014
Adopted Budget as Paid or Excess /
Budget Amended Charged (Deficit)
Financing Sources:
Debt Authorization 12,348,000 12,348,000 11,378,342 969,658
Retained Earnings Appropriated 6,400,000 6,400,000 1,519,075 4,880,925
18,748,000 18,748,000 12,897.417 5,850,583
Capital Outlays:
Recurring Construction:
Cleaning & Lining 3,000,000 3,000,000 2,999,900 100
Main Replacement 1,545,000 1,545,000 1,541,630 3,370
Valve Replacement 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,499,913 87
Meter Replacement 103,600 103,000 102,793 207
Plant / Distribution 618,000 618,000 608,331 9,669
Vehicle Repair 500,000 500,000 496,380 3,620
Dam Improvements:
Seismic Reinforcement of Dam 1,600,000 1,600,000 - 1,600,000
Production and Pumping:
Main Pump Station Discharge Valves 103,000 163,000 - 103,000
Ozone System Upgrade 1,318,000 1,318,000 1,138,641 179,354
Rehabilitate Chemical System 900,000 900,000 711,584 188,416
MCC Pump Drives 618,000 618,000 610,429 7,571
Residuals Treatment 206,000 206,000 - 206,000
Distribution:
Open Finished Water Resevoirs 1,236,000 1,236,000 944,642 291,358
Corrosion Inhibitor 515,000 515,000 393,600 121,400
Great Falls Arch Bridge Repair 618,000 618,000 18,368 599,632
Plant and General Strucfures:
Replace Roof & Skylights 50,000 50,000 - 50,000
Replace Windows - Main Pump Station 57,000 57,000 - 57,000
Main Pumping Station 412,000 412,000 312,131 99,869
Great Falls - Mise. Reliability Enhancements 206,000 206,000 - 206,000
Point View - Roof Replacement 32,000 52,000 - 52,000
Instrumentation, Controls and Information Technologies:
Building Process Review 1,236,000 1,236,000 220,986 1,015,014
SCADA - Distribution / WTP 510,000 510,000 81,257 428,743
WTP System Upgrade 1,803,000 1,803,000 1,216,832 586,168
Radio Meter Read Monthly Accts 42.000 42,000 42,000
Total Capital Outlays 18,748,000 18,748,000 12,897,417 5,850,583
Total Costs Funded by Capital Revenue 18,748,000 18,748,000 12,897,417 5,850,583
Add: Excess - - - -
18,748,000 18,748,000 12,897,417 5,850,583
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
FOR THE RETIREE HEALTH PLAN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

SCHEDULEG

Actuarial
Accrned UAALasa
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of (AAL) - AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL} Ratio Payroll Payroil
Date {2} {b) {b-a) {2 /b) () ((b-a)/¢c)
12/31/2014 § 5435922 $ 26,635,729 $ 21,195.807 25.64% $ 11,266,000 188.18%
12/31/2013 § 3,743,175 $ 28,844,102 $ 25,100,927 14.91% $ 11,187,000 224.38%
12/31/2012 § 3212068 $ 28,844,102 $ 25,632,034 12.53% $ 11,187,000 229.12%
12/31/2011 $ 2,021,831 § 23,679,371 $ 21,657,520 9.34% $ 13,511,000 160.30%
12/31/2016 £ 2,021,851 $ 23,679,371 $ 21,657,520 9.34% $ 13,511,000 160.30%
W 12/31/2009 $ 1367308  $ 24,453,445 $ 23,086,137 5.92% $ 12,975,325 177.92%
12/31/2008 $ 683,308 $ 24,433,445 $ 23,770,137 2.87% $ 12,975,325 183.19%

) The Commission has efected 1o obtain an actuarial caloulations every two years.
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SCHEDULE 7

ROSTER OF OFFICIALS AND REPORT ON SURETY BONDS

The following officials were in office at December 31, 2014:

Name
Gloria Kolodziej Clifton
Robert Vannoy Paterson
Jeffrey Levine Paterson
Menachem Bazian Passaic
Chrystal A. Cleaves Paterson
Thomas P. DeVita Clifton
Rigoberto Sanchez Passaic

Joseph A. Beila

James G. Duprey, P.E.
Yitzchak Weiss

James I. Gallagher
George T. Hanley, Esq.
Louis Amodio

Office

President

Vice President
Treasurer

Secretary
Commissioner
Commissioner
Commissioner
Executive Director
Director of Engineering
Controller

Director of Personnel
General Counsel
Administrative Secrefary

All members and employees are covered by insurance policies provided through the

New Jersey Utility Authorities Joint Insurance Fund.
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Ferraioli, Wielkotz, Cerulle & Cuva, P.A.

Charles J. Ferraioli, Jr, MBA, CPA, RMA Certified Public Accountants Newton Office
Steven D. Wielkotz, CPA, RMA 401 Wanaque Avenue 100B Maln Street
James J. Cerullo, CPA, RiMA Pompton Lakes, New Jersey 07442 Newton, N.J. 07860
Paul J. Cuva, CPA, RMA 973-835-7900 973-578-3212
Thomas M. Ferry, CPA, RMA Fax 973-835-6631 Fax 973-579-7128

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Chairman and Members of the
Passaic Valley Water Commission

1525 Main Avenue

Clifton, New Jersey 07011

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services,
Department of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey; and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of the Passaic Valley Water Commission, as of and for the year ended

December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated April 14, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit on the financial statements, we considered the Passaic Valley
Water Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Passaic Valley Water Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Passaic Valley Water Commission’s internal control.

A deficiency in infernal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiencyis adeficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance,
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Honorable Chairman and Members of the
Passaic Valley Water Commission
Page 2.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies ininternal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, daring our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal
control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, that we consider
to be significant deficiencies (Finding 2014-1).

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Passaic Valley Water Commission’s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instance of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information of the governing body, management, The Division
of Local Government Services, Department of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey, Federal
Awarding Agencies and Pass Through Entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Passaic Valley Water Commission’s Response to Findings

The Passaic Valley Water Commission’s response to the findings identified in our audit are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Commission’s
response was not subject to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financials statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

FERRAIOLIL, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

April 14, 2015
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

FINDING: 2014-1*

Statement of Condition

There are inadequate controls over safeguarding of assets, specifically the Commission’s
property, plant and equipment.

Criteria

Governmental entities should maintain a fixed asset list providing cost and description of
property and equipment, as well as any depreciation previously expensed against such listed
assets. This list should be updated regularly to include purchases of new capital items and
exclude capital assets that have been disposed of or replaced. Management should also have a
system of monitoring assets that are included on this fixed asset list.

Effect

The Commission’s property, plant and equipment are susceptible to misstatement,
misappropriation and/or theft.

Cause

Since 1965, the Commission began recording fixed assets in a general, non-itemized format (i.e.
“1969 Filter Plant Improvements). In 1985, the New Jersey Division of Local Government
Services issued Technical Accounting Directive No. 2 which, among other things, required all
local government units to maintain a physical inventory of all nonexpendable, tangible property.
The Commission did not go back and inventory previously recorded items.

Recommendation

The Commission should maintain an itemized fixed asset list providing the cost and description
of its property and equipment, as well as any depreciation previously expensed against such
fixed assets.

Management’s Response

Management recognizes the importance of maintaining an itemized fixed asset schedule and is
currently in the process of performing a complete inventory on their system.
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION

GENERAL COMMENTS

Contracts and Agreements Required to be Advertised Per N.J.S. 40A:11-3

N.J.S.A. 40A:11-2 contains definitions for terms used throughout N.J.S. A, 40A:11-1 et seq. and was
amended under P.L. 1999, ¢.440. It includes as subsection (23) the term ‘competitive contracting’, which
is defined as “the method described in sections 1 through S of P.L. 1999, ¢.440 (C.40:11-4.1 through
C.40A:11-4.5) of contracting for specialized goods and services in which formal proposals are solicited from
vendors, formal proposals are evaluated by the purchasing agent or counsel; and the governing body awards
a contract to a vendor or vendors from among the formal proposals received.”

N.J.5.A. 40A:11-3 was amended with P.L. 1999, ¢.440 to raise the bid threshold and require award by
governing body resolution. “When the cost or price of any contract awarded by the purchasing agent in the
aggregate does not exceed in a contract year the sum of $36,000, the contract may be awarded by a
purchasing agent when so authorized by ordinance or resolution as appropriate to the contracting unit, of
the governing body of the contracting unit without public advertising for bids and bidding therefore, except
that the governing body may adopt an ordinance or resolution to set a lower threshold for the receipt of
public bids or the solicitation of competitive quotations.”

N.J.S.A. 40A:11-15 was amended with P.L. 1999, ¢.440 to extend the base contract period. “Any contract
made pursuant to this section may be awarded for a period of 24 consecutive months, except that contracts
for professional services pursuant to paragraph (1) of subsection (a) of N.J.S.A. 40A:11-5 may be awarded
for a period not exceeding 12 consecutive months.

The governing body of the Commission has the responsibility of determining whether the expenditures in
any category will exceed the statutory threshold within the contract year, Where question arises as to whether
any contract or agreement might result in violation of the statute, the opinion of the Commission’s attorney
should be sought before a commitment is made.

Inasmuch as the system of records did not provide for an accumulation of payments for categories for the
performance of any work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies, the results of such an
accumulation could not reasonably be ascertained. Disbursements were reviewed, however, to determine
whether any clear-cut violations existed. No violations were discovered.

Our examination of expenditures revealed no individual payment, contract or agreement “for the
performance of any work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies” in excess of the statutory
thresholds where bids had not been previously sought by public advertisement or where a resolution had
previously been adopted under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:11-6.

Our review of the Commission’s minutes indicated that resolutions were adopted authorizing the awarding
of contracts or agreements for “Professional Services” per N.J.S.A. 40A:11-5.
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PASSAIC VALLEY WATER COMMISSION

GENERAL COMMENTS, CONTINUED

A review was performed on all prior year recommendations and corrective action was taken on all items,
except those noted with an asterisk “**.

Problems and weaknesses noted in our review were not of such magnitude that they would affect our
ability to express an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole.

Should any questions arise as to our comments or recommendations, or should you desire assistance in
implementing our recommendations, do not hesitate to call us.

We wish to thank Passaic Valley Water Commission for their cooperation during the performance of our
audit.

Respectfully submitted,

FERRAIOLI, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A,
Certified Public Accountants
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